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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors hereby submit their annual report to the members together with the audited financlal
statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial year ended 31 Degembar 2013,

FRINCIRPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activity of the Company is that of providing air ransportation services, Tha principal

activties of the subsidiaries are described in Mote 13 to the financial statements. There were no
signifizant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Greup Company
RRO00 RNOOD
MNet profit for the financial year Jgz 124 184,980

T me———— e

LIVIDENDS

Tha dividends on ordinary shares paid by the Company singe the end of the pravious flnancial
year wars as follows: _

FI'000
In raspect of the financial year ended 31 December 2012,
- & single-tier interim "special’ dividend of 18 sen per ordinary
share of RWMQ.10 each on 2,772 905,580 ordinary shares
of BMO.10 each, paid on 12 April 2013 ' 500,383
- a final single-tier dividend of 8 sen per ordinary
ghara of RMO. 10 each on 2,780,610,580 ordinary shares
of RMO.1¢ sach, pald on 3 July 20173 166,631
g87 214

The Directers now recommend a first and final single-tier dividend in respect of the financlal year
ended 31 December 2013 of 4 sen per sharg on 2,781,062 580 ordinary sharas of AMD.10 sach
amcunting to RM111,242 503, which is subject o the approval of the shareholders at ths
forthcaming Annual General Mesting of the Company.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All material {ransfars to or from rasarves and provisions durlng the flhanslal year are shown in the
financial statements.
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AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

ISSUANCE OF SHARES

During the financlal year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up ordinary share capital
from RM277.980,658 to RAM2YR,106,258 by way of issuance of 1,186,000 ardinary shares of
BMO.10 each pursuant to the exercise of the Company's Employes Share Option Scherre
("ESOS") at an exerciss prica of RM1.08 par share. The premium arsing from the exarclse of
ESOS of RM1,132,880 has baan credited to the Share Premium account.

The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year ranked parl passu In all respects with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company. There were no other changes in the issued and paid-up
share capital of the Company during the financial year.

EMPLOYEE SHARE OFTION SCHEME ("ES05")

The Company Implemented an ES0S on 1 September 2004, Tha ES0S is governed by the by-
laws which were approved by the sharehelders on 7 June 2004 and was affective for a period of 5
yvears from the date of approval. On 28 May 2003, the Company extendad the duration of its ESOS
which expired on § June 2008 by ancther 5 years to 6 June 2014, This was I accordance with the
termz of the ESQOS By-laws. The ESO0S extension was not subject to any regulatory or
shareholders' approval.

Dataile of the ESOS ars st out in Note 30 1o tha financlal statements,

The Company hag been granted an exemptlen by the Gempanies Commission of Malaysia, the
Information of which has been separately filed, from having o disclose the st of option holdars
and thelr holdings, except for eliglble employees (inclusive of Executive Directors) with share
opttons allosation of 320,000 and above. The employees who have been granted options of more
than 320,000 shares are Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandss and Datuk Kamarudin Bin
Meranun, details of which are disclosed in the section on Directors’ Interasts In Shares below.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who have held office duting the pericd since the date of the last report are as
follows:

Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun

Tan Sri O, Anthony Francis Farnandes

Daty’ Abdel Azlz @ Abdul Azlz Bln Abu Bakar
Dato’ Fam Lee Ee

Date’ Mohamed Khadar Bin Merican

Datuk Mohd Gmar Bln Mustapha

Alraan Omar

Robert Aaran Miltan {Appointed on ¥ June 2013)
Coner Me Carthy {Rotirad on 4 June 2013}
Crato’ Lecng Sonny ‘B Lecng Khee Seong {Betited on 4 June 2013)



Company Mo,
2846689 | W

AlIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia}

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS BENEFITS

Durlng and at the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2013, no arrangements subsisiad
ta which the Company is a parly, being arrangements with the object or objects of enabling
Directars of the Company fo asquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debantures of, the Company or any other body corparate.

Sinca the end of the previous financial yoar, no Director has received of hacame entitled to receive
a benefit (other than Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in Note 5 to the financial stalements) by
reasan of a contract made by the Company or a relatad corparation with the Directer or with & firm
of which he is a moember, or with a cormpany in which he has a substantial financial interest, excopt
as disclosad in Nole 36 ta the financial statements.

DIREGTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES

According to the register of Direetors® shareholdings, particulars of Interests of Directors who held
office at the end of the financial year In shares and optichs cver shares in the Company are as
follows:

Mumber of ordingry shares of RMO. 10 sach
At1a.2013

date of Af

appointment Acauired ({Disposed) 31.12.2014

Diract interests in the Company
Cato’ Abdal Aziz @ Abdul Aziz

Bin Abu Bakar 200,000 50,000 {100,000} 150,000%
Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fornandes 3,287,010 1,000,000 (2,627,010} 1,600,000
Catuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun 2,292 o000 2,000,000 (2,292,900 2,000,000
Catc’ Fam Lee E& SO00 - - 50,000
Robert Aaron Milton _ - 100,000 - 100,000

Indirect interasts

Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandes * 640,608,382 - - B40,608,382
Datuk Kamarudin Bin Meranun * 60,508,382 .- - B40,608,382

-

By virtus of their inferests in shares in the substantial sharehalder of the Company, Tune Air
Sdn. Bhd. ("TASB"), Tan Sri Dr. Anthony Francis Fernandes snd Datuk Kamarudin Rin
Meranun are deemed to have interests in the Company to the extent of TASB's interests
therain, in accordance with Saction GA of the Companies Act, 1965,

**  Shares held undar Cimsee Nominees {Tampatan) Sdn Bhd
¥ ZGhares held undesr HOM Mominses (Asing} Sdn Bhd.
Other than as disclosed above, according to the register of Directors’ shareholdings, none of the

other Directors I office at the end of the flnanclal year held any interest in shares, optiens over
shares, or debentures of the Company and its related corporations during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION OM THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Before tha financial statements of the Group and the Company were made out, the Directors took
reasonable stops:

a}

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad dehts and
the making of allowance for doubtful dabils and satisfied themsedves that all known bad
tebtzs had been written off and that adequate allewance had been mads for doubtful dehts;
and

to ensure that any current assets, other than debts, which were unllkely to realise in the
ordinaty course of business their values as shown In the accounting records of the Group
and Company had been written down to an amount whlch they might be expected sc to
reallse.

At the date of this report, the Directors are not aware of any circumstances:

{a)

{b)

e}

which would render the ameunts written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance
for doubtful dabls In the financial statements of the Group and Company inadequate to
any substantial extent; or

which would render the values atiributed to current assets th the financial slataments of
the Group and Company misleading; or

which have arisen which render adherence to {ha axisting method of valuation of assets or
liabilities of the Group and Company misteading or inapgropriate.

Mo eontingent or ather liability has become enforceabls or is likely to become enforceable within
the period of twelve monihs after the end of the financial vear which, In the. opinion of the
Diractors, will or may affect the ability of the Group or Company to mest thelr ahligations as and
whan thay fall dus.

At the date of this report, there does not exist:

{a]

(B}

any chargs on the agssats of the Group and Company which has atisan slnce the end of
the financial year which sscurss the llabllity of any other person; or

any centingent liabllity of the Group and Company whish has arisen singe the end of the
financial year,

At the date of this report, the Dirsctors ars not aware of any circurnstances not olherwise dealt with
in this report or the financlal statsments which would render any amount statad in the financial
statarmanls misleading.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

In the opinion of the Directors:

{a) the results of the Group's and Company's operations during the financial year were not
substantially affiected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature:;
and

(B} there has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and tha date of

this repart any item, transaction or avent of a makerial and unusual nature likely to affect
substantially the results of the operations of the Group and Campany for the financial year
in which this report is made,

AUDHITORS

The auditars, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have exprassed their willingness fo continue in office.

In accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 28 April 2014.

DATUK KAMARUDIN BIN MERANUN AIREEN OMAR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

o
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Revenus

Operating sxponses

- Staff costs

- Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

- Airoraft fugl expenses

- Maintenance and overhaul

- User charges and other reiated
EXPOnses

- Alrcraft operating lease
expensas

- Other operating expenses

Other galne/[losses) — net

Other thocome

Bhare of results of joint ventures

Share of results of associates

- Exlsting associates

- Dlsposed associate

Operating profit

Finance income
Finance costs

Met operating profit

Foreign exchangs (losses)igalns
on horrowings '

Foreign axchangsa gains/{losses)
on amaunts due from associates
ard |oint ventures

zain on disposal of interest in
AirAsia Japan Co Lid

Gain on dispozal of Interest in
Thai AirAsia Co Lid

Profit before taxation
Taxation

- Current taxation
- Deforred taxation

Met profit for the financial year

=
=
T

oo

15

40

10
10

Group __ Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
AKI'000 RN'D00 AM'000 RI1'000
{restated) '
5111,822 4,846,001 5111822 4,945,091
[510,905) (580,284}  (606,765)  (580,207)
{507,258) (567,176} (696,827} (567,176}
(2,212,198) (1,847,947) (2,212198) (1,947.947)
{138,622) (112,398}  {138622)  {112.298)
{490,008)  {415,898)  {490.008) (4158394}
(188,354)  {159,512)  (189,354)  (159.512)
{191,831)  (269,225)  (186,595)  (268.401)
92,689 11,035 92,689 11,085
181,279 123,942 137,813 113,510
13,595 (2,898) i U
82,695 48,495
(41,032)  (47,168) )
11,663 1,320
1010875 1,027,048 911,953  1,019.101
64,208 79,301 84,192 79,237
(428,406)  (37B.808)  (428,347) (378 785)
B46,677 727,631 547,798 719,553
(307,795} 145425  (397,785) 145,393
34,088 (29,138) 34,088 (29,139)
78,265 ]
118,840 -
361,235 962,557 184,001 835,807
{18,910) (18,245) (18,910) (18,194)
19799 (154,704) 18,79¢  (154,755)
880 (172,949) 889  (172,848)
362,124 780,608 582,858

- 184,880
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INCOME STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

Note

Met profit for the finansial year
attributable to:
- Enuity helders of the Gompany
~ Maon-contralling interests

Earnings por share {sen)
- Baslc 11
- Dlluted 11

Giroup . Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

Rk'G00 HI'Q00 BROOO R*000
(restated)
352124 780,608
262,124 788 608
13.0 8.4
12.0 28.4
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

=
=1
=

Profit for the financiat year

Other comprehensive incoms/
{loss)
lterns that may be subsaquently
reclassified to profit or loss
- Available-for-sale finansial
assots _ 18
- Cash flow hedges
- Fereign currency translation
diffarences

Othar comprahenslve Income
for the financial year,
ret of tax

Total comprahensive income for
the tinanclal year

Tolal comprehenslve income
allribulable 16
- Equity holders of the Company
- Moh-controlling interests

Group Company

2013 2012 2013 202

RMO00 AI'000 RAPOO0 RMQG0
(testated)

62,124 789 608 184,980 662 B5R

265 788 110.284 265,788 110,284

178,213 61,215 178,212 81,215

404 {145) - i

444 405 171,354 444,001 171,499

806,529 960,982 628,081 834,357
806,529 960,082

808,529

860 962
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Mataysia)

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

_ . . Groug _ _ Gompany
Mote 31122013 31122012 L12gi2 31122013 al12.2012 142012
RK'000 RIAO00 RI'000 00D RGO RI'D0D
(restatod) (restated) {restated) {restated)
HNOMN-CLIRREMT
ASSETS
Propefly, plant and
Equipmeant 12 11,282,228 0,786 030 8,586,451 11,268,171 8,755,030 8.586.146
Investmeant in
Bubaldlarl»:—;:s 13 - - - 23,480 23,480 23,480
Imvastrrent in
joint veniuras 14 134 354 120,755 123,664 81,565 21,559 81,669
Investment in
aseoclales 15 260,483 162,845 38,070 29 s el
Available-for-sale
financ_lal angets 16 a71,855 J0E, 72 152 048 561,770 245982 152 g4z
Ginodwill 17 o354 7334 7034 - - -
Beferrad tax assets ta 381,185 361,396 516, 100G J871,185 JG67,3068 818,151
Recaivables and .
prapayments 19 E47 6573 €13.415 376,05 B47 573 613,415 378,051
Deposits on aircraft
putchase 20 542 304 A83 795 287,788 42,3584 483,708 387,768
Amaunts dus frem
associatas 21 558,180 445 B8 513,614 A7R 5G4 449 578 B13,614
Derlvative flnancial '
instruments s 235,685 arevra 44 811 235 6495 a7 673 44 811
14932800 12,331,613 10,727,804 14540400 12132937 10,862,551
CURRENT ASSETS
Irvantarias 24 29,520 23,725 19,730 29,520 23,725 18,730
Receivables and ,
Rprapay ments 14 731,506 771,820 Tqg 272 647,235 738,340 TR0 522
Cerivathve financlal ’
Instrumeants 2z 3,173 n 7,668 3173 - 7,650
Amounts dus from I
subsidiaries 24 - - - 191,120 174,720 105,408
Amounts duoe from '
j@int ventures o5 33,703 10,765 4,525 11,431 3,088 4 508
Amounts dus from
Bsgociates 21 738,735 30G,874 280 4492 G844 372 331,407 289 482
Ameunts due from '
relpted parlies 24 B,113 1,282 - 6,113 1282 .
Dapaosits, cash
and bank balances 26 1,880,435 2233731 2108010 1,306 925 2158 g6 2078712
Current tax recoverahle - - 2,215 - - 1,842
. 2,824,185 3,397 197 3,177,005 2,534,881 3,439,549 3,2259.0402
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AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

Group . . Company
Mot  3112.2013 31.122M2 1.4.2012 3 12012 31122012 1.1.2012
RRADO0 FRTD00 AMPOCD AMPO00 R0 RKPO0G
_ {restqted} [restated) (restaled) restatad)
LESS: CURRENT
LIAZILITIES
Trade and othear . .
pavablos 2r 744,998 (GBS 148 AT 804 o308 38,007 GE3,435
Bales In advance G51,580 546,150 365,833 B61,520 533,201 376,624
Amount dug g .
a eubsldlary 28 . - 10,185 . 5,B06
Armeunt due to I
a Jolnt ventyre 25 - - 19,761 181 - 60,087
Amount dus ta an _ '
aesoclate . &1 4a87 - 4 444 467 13,553 4,444
Amount dus to |
redated parly - 28 15,145 12,533 140,580 . 15,145 B = 10,560
Borrowings 28 1,119,436 1,126,154 554,231 1,110,436 1,126,154 594 231
Derfvakive financal ' ' ' '
instuments - 22 29,545 35,418 38,011 20,545 258,410 38011
Currer tax llabllitles 1,074 5,122 ' - 1,400 5,563 -
. 2,578 256 2,381,532 1,754 ,m 2408 228 2,364 536 1,773,.00M
NET CURRENT ' -
ASSETS 350,930 1,005,538 ° 1,803 461 435,653 1,075,013 1,454,081
MNEN-GLURREMT
LIABILITIES
Olher payeblas and, .
eocrugls 27 918,864 B28.217 408,628 918,654 628,597 408 628
Amalpd due to an '
fsEOCiEte - 21 40,854 G4 409 - 60,659 24,499 -
Borrowings 24 9,051,416 7,283,185 71858918 0,051 415 ¥.283185 7 186,312
Cerlvathve flnanslal ' ,
instruments 22 251 768 91208 488,221 251,768 810,208 . 48882
10,2 BIE:QD'.? -B,d-?E,BDQ 8,054,865 10,282 007 8,476 A00 B, 084 AR
5,000,532 4 860,389 4036287 4,624 156 . 4,731,141 4,033,774
CAPITAL AND
BESERVES
Share capiial 34 278,106 277,001 277,809 2FRADE - 277,03 2F7 808
Share premiurm 1,228,068 1,227 035 1,226,150 1,229,088 1,207,835 1,228,150
Foraign exchange
resers Bas 451 a5 - - -
Aetalned sarnings ey | 2,624,491 3,201,581 2,580,830  2,820,8T0 3,102,804 2578003
Other reasrves B&g 412 122411 {48,088) Bag,A12 122,411 {48 0BE)
Shareholdars' equity 5,000,832 4,860,350 . ADBB307 4604156 4,791,141 4083

10



ty

ZEE0D0'G - ZEB'000'C LBF'OZ6'E JFOOSF  G90°0R G55 890°682't 80L'BLZ  POO°'IBLE
are' L - ayeL - - - - EELL Shl a5’ oL
(Frg'ssg - {FLE'700) (F1E'/09) - - - - - - P
BESa08 - B25°908  ¥ZL'BOE  882'C0¢  Ele®sl  pOF - - -
Sov'tvry - SOF EFF - qe/'GBZ CLE'RAL wOF - - -
FeL'ees - FEL'ROE  PEL'G8E - - . - - -
6oc'0oR'y - G98°088'F [B%' 182 655022 (BFL'G) LGF GOR'/ZE' L LB6'LIE BOS'BLLE
{02180 - {OEL PO DL [P0 L) - - - - - - Ot
EE0'Z08'G - BE0COE'G LIE'ELE'Y BGG'0g2  {2FL'e6) i5F CEB'/EZY 1BB'SSE BOG'BLLE
DOOMNY  000MY  DOCJNH  ODOSNH  O00MH  GOOMWH  O00NH  000NY  O00NH 000
Aanbe FIESEN B ShUUIBa aniggar EEN Y] ane2%a]  WMLEl SneEa SSlEgs 0 30N
=0 Benjosoa BAUEIEY  SlEs-1y afipal afiueyoxs areys [BUILLOR — JaOwnp

-LIap -2|08EAY MO usen  ubiicy

Uiee 0L OY jo
saeys Ao
pred &|ny pue penss)

T AURGILDT 41 10 SIER0Y ANGe Of o[Oed Iy

Ti0g lequiedeq L W

(5053.)
auleyos UondO eneyg
aafojduwg a3 o uensmd -
EatBys AEUO J0 SOUENSE)

SspuspiAIQ

ool aMsuayaIdLIeD B0 |
aw ool aasuayasdurng 1ayyn
IEaf [BjouBUl 2yl [0] 30id 18]y

pajelsal 5E -

921 5"
10 Uzdope 3o s1as -
papods) fsnoneud sw -
£10g Aenuel |y

£L0¢ H3aWw3030a £ J3aN3 dv3A TYIONYNID JHE HOd
ALIND3A NI S3BNYHD 4O INFWALVLS A3 LYQAITOSNCT

{rsdeer u pepelodioour) .
(vHHAd ¥ISYHlY

M| BROPET
‘op Auedurony




el

BUE'09RY - 608°098'y LBS°1EE'C 655'0Ee  (@rlL'es) ISt GER'ZEZ'L IBB'LLZ BOB'BLLE
298] - 298" - - - - SBL'L ghl L28’L 0g
(Z56'8E1) - {/ga'8c1) (98881} - - - - - - [
295°096 - 206'056 208's8:  ¥RZOLL  Si@'ls  {Gki) - - -
PaeLL - FSEYLL - Fee0Ll  §te'le  (SrL) - -
809887 - 806’68/ B09EEL - - - - - -
(OEL 1p0' 1) - (0eL 17 LHOEL 1P0"1) - - - - -
SEETLER'L - 88E°LER' L geE’1en’] - - - - - -
IBEOEDY - ZBE'OE0'Y 0EB'0BS'E G/2'0LL  (E9EGSH) 865 0SL'egs' | 80R'LLE IBO'BLLE
000.AH  Q00MH  O00AH  000NY  ODDWH  000NY  000JNH OO0AH 00O Q00
Anba SISRIEll B0 sfimes  SAaesa] QAFSAl | anBEal wniaad  enEh SaBUs |0 510N
ey | fHugonuan paURlE &ES-10) afipay abueryme amyg [BUILOR  Jaflinp

=R -S| eay  moy usen uBlarng

s 0L oWg o
saleys Aeuplio
pIEd AN} pUe panss]

Aedwd?y sy jo SRy AINbe OF Sjoeuguiy

fp=E)sel) ZL0T Jeqwossd LS IV

{5083

SIS O aUBYS
satopdwy sy o} wensind -
safet)s AlBUpaG o asuenses|

PPl

(paeisal) awoou)
Aesolt ansusysudnos B0

- SLIOSLISS0]) BAISUOGAICLIOS 2ud)

{pareisal) 1ead
|BlauEny 24] o) 1o 18]y

- OF HEl5d4I 0 uondope 4o sl

Teaf [EIoUBUg AUy o) joud e

Z2loz Aenuer 1y

(A3NNILNODY §102 HAGWADAT LS AIANT HYIA VIDNVYNIH IHL O
ALINO3 NI SFONVHD 40 INJWALYLS a3LvanoOsSNOD

(eefeen u pearlodioou)
aviHd3ag vISvHIY

M| BRoFEs
"o Auedwon




El

85 L rES T 0450893 290°622' 1 2FEOgF 50008 o0 L BLE FOLELE E107 18quisoad Lo 1Y

8FE’1 - EELL - - SHY 951} 08 LSOS3)
alWlayag uondery aueys

aghoidw |yl oy wensnd -

SBJBYS JO OOURNSS|

(2’799} {12790} - - - - - Ze SpUapIAL]
L2A82T D86 FEL - 89/ 'G82 £z - - SLI0aL| aAsUSUeIdLIND (810 |
IO FrF - - 86.'0082 glagsl - - LD BASI0UAIALLOD 1ALy
086 ¥a L 085°v81 - - - - - Ieal (et ayy 1oy 11oud 13
LWL EELF POZ0LE GER'LZE'E B8550E2 {8¥1'g6) [B6'2SE gUs'RLL'e £10g AEnuep | 1y
LS | - DOOMH 000, A 000, Q00 H Q00.NH 000,

B0 shuiea tUAuaud arlasal QAITSE anpea 58JBUS [0 108
[aTe I aEys BlES-10} afipoy [EUUOY 18aLWIAp
) -Sae ey AnD) LSBT
BOeullsl]  S|qEmngLIsip-ucy 42es 0| Givy 10

saleEys AeupLo
pied Ay pue panss)

£10g HIFW3DAA 1£ A3ONT HY3A TVIONYNIZ JHL HO4
ALINTG3 NI SAONYHD 40 INJFWILYIS ANYLWNOD

{misfeE v paeiodicour}
avHd33 ¥ISvdiv

M | 659va2
"on AUedUlon




Tl

L IEL' Y FORZ0L'E GE6 2T ) 655023 (21126} 166" L8 BOB'BLLE
256°1 - Gai't - - Fa=11 128°L 0e
{/56'851) {7GA'BEL) - - - - - e
J5E'vER 8958°209 - yRZ0LL G121 - -
567 LI - - FEC 0L 1219 - -
858209 858299 - - - - -
VL2 EEOF £06'9L5°2 0SL'azE’ | L2001 (CoE'6G 1) BOS L% I80°'8.2'T
000N 0QoNY 000.MY 000JAY - a00. MY 000,y oo,
B0l BOLIOTED TLTHEad ST ETEY ] EYNETEY afjea S3IEYS JO T
pauElay Bl OfEs-10] afipay [EULLICN Jaquurpy
-8|qE|BAY Mol yses
O[QEINGINSIO  SEInguIsIp-Uopy T U988 . oyd 10

saleys Areuplo
pred Agn) pue penss|

2102 Jadusdad LE W

{8083}
awsyas uondry sreys
aafo|dwg syl o3 wensind -

S2IEYS |0 SOUBMESS]

PUGPIA]

BLUCAL aArSUsLeId LoD 210 |

alloou aasuayardon 180u0
read fpIaueul Su) 10y Woud 154

210z Atenuer | 1y

(A3INNILNGD) £10¢ U3FINADIA L€ A3ANT HYIA TYIONYNIZ IHL HOd
ALINGA NI SAONYHO FO LNIWALVLS ANVAWOD

{risAEE| u peresodioou)

avHEEd YISvdIY

A | GRMMFEE
op Aued o




Company Mo,
284668 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

L Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
RR'O00 R'D00 BM'000 R D00
{rastated)
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Proflt bafore taxation 381,236 g62 557 184,081 535,807
Adjustments:
Propery, plant and equlpment
- Depraclation 87 258 567,178 Ho6 827 Bg7 178
~ Gain on disposals (3,036) {0,323} (3.038) (8,328}
Gain on disposal of interest in Airdsia
dapan Co Lid (78,280) - -
Gain an dispesal of intereat in Thai AlrAska
Co Ltd {118,540
Impairment on avaitabla-for-sals financial
asset 2685 - -
Impairment of trade and other receivables 18,864 - 16,382
Impairment of amount dus from a subsidiary - - 5,308
Fair value {gain)/loss on derlvative
financial instruments (PR7 266} 5,208 (2B7,266) 85,308
Share of rasulls of joint ventures {13,599 2,894 T -
Share of rasulls of sssociates {41,663} {1,329} -
Mot unrealised foreign exchange
- loss/{paln) 517 BEg {205,524} 517,665 (205,402}
Irerast sxpense 428 408 478,808 428,347 378,785
Interest income {64,208} (79,301} (64,192) (79,237}
1,438,080 1,592,536 1,304,128 1,583,018
Changes in working capiltal:
Inventorias {5,785) {3,505) {5,795) £3,995)
Recaivables and prepayments {147 .217) {268,116) {183,845) (283,141}
Trade and other payablos 484,809 315,856 420,750 318,254
Related party balances {3689,431) (2,142) (355,875) (55,071)
Cash generated from operations 1,430,446 1,634,138 1,268,263 1,577 0684
Interast paid {411,117 {378,808) (411,117} (878,485}
intarast recetved 84,208 78,3H &4,162 78,237
Tax paid (22,369} (10,856} (22,358) {10,689}
Met cash from operating actlvities 081,138 1,323 885 828,939 1,267 128
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Company No,
li 284889 | W

AlRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated In Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

=
2
i

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Property, ptant and equiprmant
- Additions
- Proceeds from disposals
Loan repayment received from
associates
Froceeds fram disposal aof
assoo|ate
Investment in asseciates
Loans granted to associate
Ceposits on aircraft purchase
Furchases of available-for-gals
financial assets
Flacemeant of restricled cash

Met cash used in investing
activities

GASH FLOWS FROM
FINAMCIMG ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from allolmant of shares
Froceads from borrowings
Rapaymeant of borrowings
Dividands pald

Depasits pledged as securities

Met cash from financing activities

MET {DECREASE)INCREASE
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

CURREMNCY TRANSLATION
DIFFERENCES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINMNING CF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

CASH AND CASH
EOUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

26

. (Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
ARYO00 R"000 RM' 300 BRIOO0
{restated)
{2,117,458) (1,772,507} (2,112,369 (1,772,507
16,437 15170 18,437 14,865
30,644 21,080 30,644 31,080
78,265 . - -
(55,975) {16,608} - -
(145,514) - {64,888) -
{152,483} {128,740) (152,483) {128,740
- {32,756} - {32,756)
{171,529) - {171,528) -
2,517,608} {1,804,441)  (2,454,183) {1,288,138)
1,248 1,967 1,248 1867
2,424,872 1,533,208 2,424,872 1,633,268
{1,250,227) (662,376)  (1,250,227) (662,376}
(667,214} (138,957 (667,214} (138,957
(B28) {1,004) (928} (1,094
E07 251 732,838 507,851 732,838
{1,048,615) 152,253 {1,056,353) 111,628
239,883 {25,636) 23,883 {25,636)
2,219,243 2,092,618 2,153,511 2067318
1,184,480 2,219,243 1,120,581 21583511
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Company MNo.
[ 2B4E69 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SIGMIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Tofal purchase of property,
plant and equipment during
the finanzial year

Settlement by lessors on behalf
of the Company for purchase
of aircraft

Met cash used in purchase of
property, plant and equipment

Met book value of propery,
plant and equipment dispossd
during the financial year

Gain on diépnsal of property,
plant and equipment

Total proceeds from dispogal of
property, plant and squiprment

Sattlament by leasors on behalf
of the Company for purchase
of alrcraft

ket cash proceads received
frem disposal of property,
plant and equipment

MNota

12

Groun Company

23 2012 2013 2012
RM'Q0D Ri'000 RK'000 RGO
{2117,455) {1,4896,197} (2,112,369) {1,858,197}
- 123,600 - 123,600
f2.117,455) (1,772,607 (2,112,369 1,772,597
13,401 120,442 13,401 129,137
3,036 0328 3.036 9,328
16,437 138,770 16,437 138, 465

- {123,600} - (123,600

16,437 15,170 16,437 14,865
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Company Mo,

284668 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysial

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing air transpoertation services. The principal
activities of the subsidiaries are described in Mote 13 1o the financial statements, Thers wors no
slghificant changes in the nature of these activities during the financiat year.

The address of the reqgistared office of the Company is as follows:

B-13-15, Lavel 13,

henara Prima Tower B,

Jalan PJU1/32, Dataran Prima
47301 Petaling Jaya

Selangor Darul Ehzan

The address of the principal place of businass of the Company 1= as fallows:

LCC Torrninal

Jalan K1tA 83
Southern Support Zons
KL International Alrport
84000 Sepang
Selangor Darul Ehsan

The financial statements have been approved for issue it accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on 28 April 2014,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise stated, the following aecounting policies have been applied consistently in
dealing with items that are considerad material in relation o the financial statements:

(@)

Basis of preparation

The financial slatemants of the Group and Company have besen prepared in accordance
with the provisions of the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (‘MFBS'}, international
Financlal Reporting Stantards and the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in
Malaysia.

Tha financial statemants have been preparad under the histerical cost convention, except
aa disclesad In the accounting palicies below.

The preparatlan of financial statements in conformity with MFRS requltes the usa of certain
eritlieal accounting estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and lfabilities and disclosurs of contingent assets and liahilities at the date of the financlat
staternents, and the reportad amounts of revenueas and expenses during the reported
period. |t also requires Direclors o exerclsa their Judgment In the process of applying the
Group and Company's accounting policies. Although these estimates and judgment ars
tased on the Directors’ best knowledge of current @vents and actlens, actual results may
tlffsr. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are signlficant to the financial statements are disclosad In
MNote 3.

18



Company No.

2846858 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

(Ingorparated in Malayafa)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(b}

{c)

Standards, amendments to publishsd standards and intarpratations that are effestive

The new sccounting standards, amendments and improvements to published standards
and interpretations thet are eifective for the Group and Company’s financial vear
beginning on or after 1 January 201 3 are as follows:

MRS 10, 'Conzolidated Financial Statemants'

MFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements’

WMERS 12 'Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities’

MFRS 13 'Falr Value Measurement'

Thae revised MFRS 127 'Separate Financial Statements’

The ravised MFRS 128 'Investments In Associates and Jolnt Ventures'

Amandments to MFRS 101 'Presentation of llems of Other Cormprehensive

Meome'

Amendment to MFRS 119 ‘Employvee Benafits'

. Amendment to MFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures'

. Amendments to MFRS 10, 11 & 12 ‘Consolidated Financial Statemants, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure of Interasts In Other Entities: Transitlon Guidance”

. Annual Imprevements 2008 — 2011 Cycle

& ® ® ® =8 a 9

Standards sarly adopted by the Group and Company

Tha amendments to MFRS 138 ‘Impairment of assets' removed certain disclosures of the
recoverable ameount of cash gensrating units ({CGUS" which had been included in MFRS
136 by the issuance of MFRS 13. The amendment is not mandatory for the Group and
Company until 1 January 2014, howaver the Group and Company has desided to aarly
adopt the amendment as of 1 January 2013,

Standargs, amendments {o published standards and Interpretations to existing standards
that are applicabls to ihe Group but not vt effective

The Group wlill apply the new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations in
ife following peripd: .

(i} Effective for financial yaar beginning on or after 1 January 2014

. Amendment to MFRS 132 'Financial Instruments: Presentation’ (effective
fram 1 January 2014} does not change the current ofisetting modsl in
MFRS 132, |t clariffes the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforcoeable
right of set-off' that the right of set-off must be avaflable today {not
contingert on a future event) and |egally enforceabls for all counterparties
in the normal course of business, [ clarifies that some gross settlement
mechanizms with features that are effectively equivalent to net settlsment
will 2atisfy the MFRS 132 offzetling critarla.

. Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 127 {effective from 1
January 2014} introduse an exception to censolidation for Investment
sntities. Investment entities are entities whose business purpose is to
invest funds sclely for returns from capital appreciation, investment
income or both and evaluate the performance of iis investments on fair
value basis. The amendments require invesiment entities to measurs
particular subsidiaries at fair value instead of consolidating thermn,

14



Compary No.

284668

W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated In Malaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{c} Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretatichs 10 existing standards
that are applicable to the Group but not vet effective (continued)

)

Effactive date yet to be determined by Malayslan Accounting Standards Board

» MFRS 9 'Financial Instruments - Classificatioch and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’ replaces the pans of MFRS 138
that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments.
MFERS 2@ reguires financial assels to be classifled into two measuremeant
cateqorles: those measured as at fair value and those measured at
amortised cost. The determihation is made at initial recogniton. The
classificatioh depends on the entity's business model for managing is
financial instruments and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
instrument. For financial liabilitizs, the standard retalns most of the MFRS
139 requirements, The main changs iz that, in casas whers the fair value
option is taken for financial liabilities, the part of & falr value change dus to
an sniity's own credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income
rather than the income statement, unless thls creates an accounting
mismatch. The Group has yet to assess MFRS 9's full impact. The Group
will also consider the impact of the remaining phases of MFRS 8 when
completed by the Board.

(d} Basls of consolldation

{i}

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entitles {including structured entilies) ovar which the Group
has control. The Group controls an enfity whon the Group |s exposed to, or has
rights to, variable retuns from its involvement with the sntity ard has the ability to
affect those retums through its powsr over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control |s transferred to the Group, They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Group applies the asguisition method fo account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair valuas of
the assels transferred, the liabilitizs incurred to the former cwners of the asqulres
and the equity inforests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
inciudes the falr valle of any asset or lability resuling frem a cantingent
consldsration  arrangement, |dentifiable assets acquired and llabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group recognlses any non-controlling
interast in the acquires on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at falr value
or at the non-controlling Intersst’s preportionate share of the recognised amsaunts
of acguiree’s identifiable net assets, '

Acquisition-related costs are expensad as incurred.
If the business comblination is achleved In stages, the acquisition date fair value of

the acquirer's previously held equity inferest in the acquirea g ramsasurad o falr
value at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

20



Company Mo.

284589

Wy

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorparated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMBMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

fed) Basis of consalidation {continued)

(i}

(i)

Substdiaries {continued)

Any contingent consideratlen to be transterred by the Group is recognisad at fair
value at the acquisition date. Subseguent changes to the fafr value of the
cantingent consideration that is deemad to be an asset or fiabillty is recognised in
accordance with MFRS 133 either In profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehenslve income. Contingent consideration that Is classified as equity is not
remeasUred, and its subseguent settfement is accounted for within agulty.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-contraliing
Intsrest in the acquires and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous sduity
Interest in the acquires over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acqulred is
recognised as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held Interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidlary acquired In the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised direetly in the Incorme statemeant,

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreallsed gains on transactions
betwesn groLp companies are eliminated, Unrealised losses are alss aliminated.
Whera necessary, amounts reported by subsldiaries have been adjusted 1o
conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Jolnt arrangements

A joint arrangsment ls an arrangement of which there is contractually agreed
sharing of control by the Group with one or more partles, where decisions about
the relevant activities relating to the joint arrangement require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The classification of a |oint arrangement as a joint
aperation or a Joint venture depends upon ths rights and obligations of the parlies
to the arrangement. A joint veniute is a joint arrangement whereby the jolnt
venturers have rights 1o the net assets of the arrangement. A jolnt operation is a
Jolnt arrangement wheraby the faint operaters have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilltles, relating to the arrangement.

The Group's interest in a joint venture 1s aceounted for In the financial statements
using the squity method of accounting. Under the equity method of actounting,
Interests in joint venturas are initially recognleed at cost and ad|usted thersafter to
recognise the group's share of the postacquisition proflts or losses .ang
movements in othar comprehensive incorme, When the Group's share of losses in
& joint venture equals or excesds Its interests in the |aint ventures (which includes
any long-term [nterests that, In substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
it the |oint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred ohligations ar made payments on behalf of the Jolnt ventures. If the joint
venture subsequertly reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of profits equals the share of losses not
recognised, Where an antity loses joint contrel over a joint venture but ratains
significant influence, the Group doss not re-measure its continued ownership
intereat at fair vatue.
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284868

W

AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(el Basis of gonsolidation {continued)

{il

(il

dolnt arrangements {confinued)

Unrealised gains on transactions hetween the Group and It joint venturss are
sliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the |pint venturss. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides ovidence of an
impairment of the asset transfarred. Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
baen changed whera necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adoptad
by the Group.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has signiflcant influsnce but not
control, generally accompanying a sharsholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates arg accounted for using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity msthed, the investment is initialty recognised at
cost, and the carrying amount is fereased or decreased to recognise the
invastor's share of the profit or loss of the Investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investmant in assoclates Includes goodwill identified on acguisition.

I the ownership interest in an assoclate is reduced but significant influsnce Is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts praviously recogniged in other
comprehensive incoma is raclassified to profit or loss whers appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the incoms
statement, and ils share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
incoma is recognised in other comprehenslve Income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the Investment. When the Group's shars of
losses in an associate equals or excesds its interest in the assoclate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise fur'ther lozsas,
unless it has incurred lsgal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsaguently reports profits, the Group
resumes recognising ts share of those profits only after Its share of profits equals
the shars of losses not recognised.

The Group determines at each reportihg date whether there Is any objective
evidence that the investmeni In the associate is impaired. If this is the casa, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recovarabls amount of the associate and its carrying value and recogrises tha
amount adjacent to 'share of results of assonlates’ in the income statement,’

Profits and |osses resulting from upstream and downstrearn transactions between
the Group and its assoclates are recognised in the Group's financial statements
cnly 1o tha extent of unrelated investor's intorasts In the associates. Unrealised
losses are aliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
whera necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Greup,

. Dilution gains and Ipsses arising in investments In associates are recognised in

profit or logs.
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284568 | W

AlRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

(&)

{f}

ool

Goodwill ariges on the acquisition of subsidiaries and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred aver the Group's interest in net falr value of the net identiflable
assots, liabilties and conlingent liabiltiss of the acyulree and the fair value of the non-
coniralling Interest in the agquirze.

For the purpose of impafrment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination s
allocated to aach of the cash generating units {'CGUSY, or groups of CGUs that is
expected 1o banefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to
which the goodwill is allocated represenis the lowast level within the entity at which the
goodwill is monitored for Internal managemant purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
opsrating segment level,

Goodwlll Impairment reviews are undartaken annually or mors frequently i events or
changes in circumstances indicats a potential impairment. The carrying value of goodwill |s
compared to the recoverable amaount, which is the higher of valus in use and the fair value
less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immadiately as an expense and is not
subsequently revarsad.

Fraperty, plant and aguiproent

Froperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and
accumulated impairment losses, The cost of an flem of property, plant and equipment
initially recognised Includes its purchaso price and any cost that &5 directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the |ocation and condition necessary for # 1o be capabie of operating
in the manner intended by management. Costs also include borrowing costs that arg
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of a qualifying asset (refer
to accounting policy Mote 2(sh on borrowing costs).

Where significant parts of an ltem of property, plant and equipment are reguired to be
replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts in the carrying amount of the
property, plant and equipment as a replacement when It is probable that future ecanomic
Denefits assoclated with the parts will flow to the Group and the cost of the parts can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maimenance are recognised as expenses in profit or 0ss during the financlal
garled in which they are Incurred.

Significant parts of an ltem of property, plant and property are depreciated separately over
their estimated useful lives in accerdance with the principle in MFRS 118 "Property, Flant
and Equipment”. Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write-off tha
cost of the asesis to their residual values over thair sstimated ussful lIves.
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AIRAS|A BERHAD

(Incorporated in Malaysta)

NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(f}

Property, plant and squipment (continued)

The useful lives for this purpose are as follows:

Airoraft
- engines and aitframe excluding service potential ' 25 years
- sarvice potentiaf of englnes and airframe 2 or 13 years
Aircraft spares 10 vaars
Aircrait flxtures and fittings ' Useful life of aircraft or remaining lease
tarm of aircraft, whichever iz shorter
Buildings
- simulator 28.75 years
- hangar b years
Moter vehicles S years
Office equipment, furniture and thtlngs Syears
Office renovation 5 vyears
Simulator sgulprment 25 years
Chperating plant and ground souipment : Syears
Im-fligkt souiphent S vyoars
Trainlng aqulpment 5 years

Serviese potential of 8 years represents the period ovar which the expected cost of the first
tmafor aircraft engine overhaul ls depreciated. Subsequent to the engine overhaul, the
actual cost incurred is capitallsed and depreciated over the subsequent 8 years.

Service potential of 13 years represents the perlod over which the expected cost of the
first major airframe check is depreciatad. Subsequent to the airframe check, the actual
cost imcurred is capitalised and depreciated over the subsequent 13 yaars,

Aszszota not yet in operation are stated at cost and are not depreciated until the assets are
ready. for their interided use. Useful lives of assets are reviowed and adjusted if
appropriate, at the balance shasot date,

Residual values, wheyrs appllcable, are reviewsd annually against prevailing market rates
at the balance sheet date for equivalent aged assets and depreciation ratas are adjusted
accordingly on a prospective basis. For the current financial year ended 31 Decomber
2013, the estimated residual value for aircraft airframes and engines 1s 10% of thelr cost
{2012 10% of their cost).

An element of the cost of an acquired aircraft Is attribited on acquisition to its service
potentlal, reflecting the maintenance condltion of its engines and airframs. This cost, which
can equate to a substantial element of the total aircraft cost, is amortlsed over the shorter
uf the peried to the next checks or the remaining life of the alreraft.

The cost of subsequent major airframe and engine maintenance checks as well as

Upgrades to leased assets are capitallsed and amortised over the shorter of the perled to
the next chegk or the remaining life of the aircraft.
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AIRAS|A BERHAD

{Incorparaied in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(fy Property, plant and equipmant {centinued)

At the end of the reparting period, the Group dssesses whether there is any indication of
impairment. f such an Indication existz, an analysis is performed 1o assess whether the
carrylng amount of the asset s fully recoverable. A write down is made if the carying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount. Sae accounting pelicy Note 2{h) on impairment
of assets.

Gaing and logses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount and are includsd In profit or losa,

Ueposits on aircraft purchase are included as part of the cost of the aircraft and are
depraslated from the date that aircratt is ready for its intended use,

{a) Investments in subsidiaries, jeint ventures and associates

In the Company’s separate financlal statements, investrmenis in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates are stated at cost less accumulated impairmant losses. Where an
indication of impairment exlsts, the carrying amount of the investment |5 assessed and
written down immediately to its recoverable amount (ses Note 2(h)). On disposal of
investmants in subsldlarles, joint ventures and associates, the differancs between disposal
proceeds and the carrylng amounts of the investmants are recognised In profit or logs.

thy Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life ars not sublect to amortisation and are tested for
Irmpatrment annually, or ag and whaen evenls or elrcumstances ocour indicating that an
imparrmant may exist. Assets that are subjsct to amortisation are reviewed for impatrment
whenever events or changes In clreurnstances indicate that the camying ameunt may not
be recoverable. An impalrment Inss is recognised for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the assel exceeds its recoverable amount. The recovaerable amount is the
higher of an asset's falr value less gost to sell and value-in-uge. For the purposs of
assessing Impairrment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for which there are
soparately Hdentlfiabla cash flows (CGUs). Nonfinanclal assets other than goodwill that
suffered an Impairment are reviewed for possible reversal at each reparting dats.

Any impairment loss is charged to profit of loss unless it reverses a pravious revaluation in
which cass it is charged to the revaluation surplus. Impairment losses on goodwill are not
reversad. In respect of other assets, any subseduent Increase in recoverable amount is
recagnlsed in profit or (083 unless it revarsss an Impairment loss on a revalued asset in
which case it is taken to revaluation surplus.

{i} Meintenarce and overkaul
Owned airgraft
The accounting for the cost of providing majer airframe and carain angine maintenance

chacks for owned alreraft is desecribad in the accounting palicy for properly, plant and
eqHpmsnt. _
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{i}

Maintenance and overhaul {continued)
Leasad aircraft

Whera the Group has a commitment to maintain aircraft held under operating lsases,
pravislon is made during the lease iemn for the reclification abligations contained within the
lease agreements. The provisions are based on estimated future costs of major aifframe,
ceftain engine maintenance chacks and ana-off costs incurred at the end of the lease by
making appropriate charges 1o the income statement caloutated by reference to the
number of hours or eyclas oparated during the financial vear.

Leases

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee in return for a payment,
or series of payments, the right to use an agset for an agreed period gf tims.

Legsee
Finance |sgses

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group haz substanttally all the risks
and rewards of ownershlp ars classlfied as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payment,

Each lease payment is aflocated between the Eability and finance charges so as to
achiove a periodic constant rate of interest on the remaining baianae of the liabilky. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in payables. The
Imterest element of the finance cost iz charged to profit or loss over the leasa petiod so as
ta produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liahility for
each period. The property, plant and equipment agguired under finanse leases is
depreciated ovar the shortar of the useful life of the asset and the lease tarm.

Initial direct costs Incurred by the Group in negofiating and arranging finance leases are
added to the carrying amount of the leased assets and recognised as an expanse in profit
or loss over the lease term on the same basis as the lease expense.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease contracls are depreciated
over the estimated useful life of the asset, in accordance with the annual rates stated [n
Mota 2(f) above, Whete there is no reasonable certainty that the ownership will be
transferred to the Group, the asset s depreciated over the shorer of the lease tarm and itz
useful life.

Oparating leases

Leases of assets where a significant portion of the rlsks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the lessor ara classified as operating leases. Paymants made under operating
leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease period.
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{)

{k}

Leases {continuéd}

Lossor

Qperating |eases

Assets leaged out by tha Group under operating leages are included in proparty, ptant and
equipmant in the balance sheet, They are depreciated over their expectad useful lives on
8 basis congistent with similar owned property, plant and equipment. Lease Income {net of
any incentives given 1o lessaes) (s recognised over the term of the lease on a straight line
hasls.

inventories

nventaties comprise of consumables used interally for repalrs and maintenance are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost i3 detarmined on the welghted average basis, and comprises the purchase price and
incidentals incurrad In bringing the invertories to thalr present |lecation and condition.

Mot raalisable value represents the estimaled selling price in the ordinary courss of

buginess, less all applicable variable selting expenses. In arriving at net realisable value,

due allowance is made for all damaged, obsolete and siow-moving items.

Flnancial assefs

{i} Ciassification
The Group classifiss ils financial assets in the followlng categories: at fair valus
through proflt or loss, lpans and receivables and available-for-sale. The
classification dapends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determings the classification at initial recognition.

Flnancial assets at fair value throuagh profit or loss

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for
trading. A financial asset is classifisd in this category if it is acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near tarm, Derivalivas
are also categorised ag held for trading unless they are deslgnated as hedges
{see Note 2(n)}. Assats in this category are classified ag current assets if expected
to be settled within 12 merths; otherwise, they are classifled as non-current,

Loans and racelvables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with flxed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for maturitias greater than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period, These are classlfled as non-current assets. The Group's Inans
and receivables comprise ‘trade and other rsceivables’, ‘amcunts due from
associates, joint ventures and related companies' and ‘deposits, cash and bank
halances’ in the bhalance sheets,
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Al Flnancial assets {continued)

(i)

(il

{iii}

Clagsifisation [continued)

Available-for-sale financlal assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are aither designated In
this categery or not classified in any of the other categories. Thay are included in
non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends to
dispose of It within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Hacognltion and inifial measurarment

Regular purchases and sales of financial azsets are recognised on the trada-date,
the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the assat.

Financial assels ars Initially recognised at falr value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at falr vaiue through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction casts are expenged in prodit or loss,

Subsequent measurement ~ gaing and losses

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets through profit or less are
subsequently carried at falr valle. Loans and receivables are subzaquently carrled
at amortised cost using the effactive interest method,

Changes in the fair values of tinancial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
including the effects of currency translation, Imterest and dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss in the period In which the changes arise.

Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in
olher comprehensive income, except for impairment losses (see accounting policy
Mote 2{I}(iv}} and foreign sxchange gains and losses on monetary assets. The
exchange differences on monetary assets ars recognised in the income
statement, whaereas exchange differences on non-monetary assets are recognised
in other comprehanstve income as part of fair value changa.

[ntarest and dividend income o available-for-sale financial assets are recognisad
separately in profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale debt securitles calculated
using the effsctive intsrest method i recognised in profit or loss. Dividends
income on avallable-ior-sale equity instruments are recognised in prefit or Iose
whan the Group’s right to receive payments is estalblishad.
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{1}

Financial asssets (continuad}

(i}

Subsequent measurement - Impafrment of financial assets

Assets carried af amortlsed cost

The Group assesses at the end of tha reporting period whether there is objective
evldence that a financial asset or group of financial assets s Impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets 1s Impaired and impalrment losses ara Incurred
only if there is objective evidence of Impairment as a rosuit of cne or more events
that cocurred after the intlal resognition of the asest (a ‘loss event') and that loss
event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financlal assets that can be raliably astimated.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is ohjective svidencs of an
impairmant loss Include;

- Signiflcart financial difficulty of the fssuer ar obligor;

. A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in IMterast or
princlpal payments;

. The Group, for aconomic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's

financial difficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the lender
would not otherwlse consider;

. It becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial recrganisation;

. Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial diflculties; or

. - Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decreass In the

estimated future cash flows froem a pertfolio of financlal assets since the

Initial recognition of thase assets, although the decrease cannot yet he

identified with the individoal financial assets in the portfolie, including:

(i}  adverse chanoes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio;
and

{iiy  national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the portfolio.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amaunt and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future cradit losses that have not been ncurred} discounted at the financial azset's
original effective interest rate. The asset's carrying amount of the asset is redused
and the amount of the loss is recognlsed in profit or loss. If ‘lsans and recelvables'
have a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss
is the current efiective interest rate determinad under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairmant an the basis of an instrument's fair
valug using an observable market price.

'f, in & subsequent pariod, the amount of the impalrment lgss decreases and the
decrease can be related oblectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an improvement In the debtor's credit rating), the

reversal of the previously recognised Impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss,
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i} Financial assets {continued)

(v}

{v}

Subsequant measurement — Impairment of financial assets (continuad)

Assets garrled at amertized cost [sontinued)

Whan an asset iz uncellectible, it fs written off against the refated allowance
account. Such assets are written off affer all the necassary procedures have been
cornpleted and the amount of the loss has heen detarmired,

Assets classified as available-for-gals

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period whether there |s chiective
gvidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

For debt securities, the Group uses criteria and measuremesnt of impairment loss
applicable for 'assets carrled at amortised cost’ abova,

In {he case of equity securilies classified as avallabledor-sale, in addilon to the
criterla for 'assets carried at amortised cost' above, a significant or prolonged
decline n the fair valoe of the security below its cost is alse cansidered as an
indicator that the asseis arg impaired. If any such evidence exists for avallable-for-
sale financial assets, the cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in
equity is removed from equity and recognised In profit or loss. The amount of
cumulative loss that is reclassifiod to profit or loss is the dilference between the
gequisition cost and the current falr value, |ess any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognlsed In profit or loss. Impalrment losses
recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale
are not reversed thraugh proflt or loss,

De-recognition

Financial assets are de-recognised when tha rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or havae been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewarda of ownelship.

When available-for-sale financial assets are sold, the ascumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in other comprehansive lncome are reclassified to the
income statements,

fm) (Hfsetting financial instrumants

Financial assets and llabilies are offset and the nat amount presented in the balanes
sheets when there is a legally enforceabls right to offsst the recognized amounts and there
is an intention io settle on a net basls, or realise the assst and sstile the liabillty
simultanzausly.

{n) Derlvative flnanclal Instruments and hedging activitlas

Derivatives ara initially recognised at falr value on the date a derivative coniract is sntered
into and are subseguantly re-measured at their fair value.
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{n)

Derivative financial instruments and hedging activities (continued)

The methad of recogniging the resulting gain or loss depends on whethar the derivative Is
designated as a hedging Instrument, and the nature of the item being kedged. Derlvatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting ara classified as held for trading and accounted
for in accordanee with the accounting pollcy set out in Note 2{1). The Group deslgnates
certain detivatives as hedges of a particular risk associaled with a recognised asset or
llabllity e & highly probable forecast transaciion (cash flow hedge).

The Group documents at the inceptian of the transaction the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged ltems, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undettaking varlous hedging transactions. The Group also documents jiz assassment,
both at hedge Inesption and on an ongoing basls, of whethsr the derivatives that are used
in hedging transactlons are highly effective In ofisetting changss in sash flows of hedged
itams.

The fair values of various darivative Instruments used for hedglng purposes are disclosed
In Mete 22 to the financial statements, The full falr value of a hedging derivative |s
classified as a non-currant asset or llability when the remalning hedgsd item is more than
12 months, and as & current asset or liahility whan the remaining maturily of the hedged
item Is |ess than 12 months, :

Cash flow hedoe

The effective portion of changes in the fair valte of derivatives that are designated and
qualify a8 cash flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive incoma. The gain of
loss ralating 1o the ineffective portion is recognised immediatsly in the income statemant
within 'othar gains/{losses) — net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity ars reslassified to profit or loss in the periods when the
hedged Itern affects profit or loss (for example, whan the forecast sale that is hedged takes
place). The gain or loss refating to the effective portlon of interest rate swaps hedging
variable raie borrowings Is recognised in profit or loss and presented separately after net
operating profit.

Whan the forecast transaction that is hedged resulis in the recognition of a nan-financial
assel {for example, inventory or propery, plant and equipment}, the gains and losses
previously deferred in eduity are transferrad from equity and included in the inltial
measurement of the cost of the asset. The deferred amounts are utttmately recognlssd in
cost of goods sold In the case of inventory, or In depreciation in the case of property, plant
and aguipmant. :

When a hedging instrument expires ar is sold, or when a hedgs no langer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing In equity af that time
remains ih equity and Is recognised when the forecast transaction Is ultimatsly recognised
in profit or loss, When a forscast transaction is no longer expected 1o ocour, the cumulative
gain or loss that was reported in equlty is immediately transferred to the income statament
within ‘other gains/{losses) — net’.
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(o)

{n}

(o)

Trade recelvables

Trade receivables are amounts due from custormers for merchandise sold or services
parformad in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in ore year or lass
{or in the normal eperating cycle of the business i langar), they are classified as current
assats. Otherwlse, they are presanied as non-current asssts. '

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effactive interest mathod, fess provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equlvalents

For the purposs of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand, bank balances, demand deposis and other short term, highly llauid investments
with original maturities of thrae months or less, less bank overdrafts. Deposits held as
pledged securities for tarm loans granted are not included as cash and cash equlvalents.

Provisions
Provisions are racognised when the Group has a prasent legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to seitls the obligatlon, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can ba made.
Provigions are not rocoghised for fulure operating losses.
Share capital
{i} Classification

Ordinary shares with discretlonary dividends are classified as equity.

{ii} Share issue costs

lncremental external costs directly attribetable to the issuance of new shares or
options are deducted against share premium aceount.

{lll} Dividends distribution

Distributions to holders of an equity instrument Is debited directly to equity, net of
any related income tax benefit and the corresponding liability is recognised in the
period In whish the dividends are approved

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowinge are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently cerrled at amortised cost; any diffsrance betwesn initial
recagnised amaount and the redemptich value is recognised in profit or loss over the pericd
of the barrowings using the effective intersst method.

General and speciflc borrowing costs directly attribuiable to the acqulsition, construction or
preduction of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantlal period
of tirme to get ready for their intendad use or sale, are added to the cost of those assats,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their Intended use or sale.
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(8)

{th

Borrowlhgs and borrowlng costs {continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrewlngs panding
their expenditure on gualifying assets is deductsd from the borrowing costs eligible far
capitalisation.

All ather borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the perlod in which they are
incurred.,

Fees paid on the establishmant of loan facilities are recognlsed as transaction costs of the
loan 1o the extent that 1t is prebable that soma or all of the facility will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferrad until the drawdown occurs, To the extant thare is no ovidance
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is caphallsad
as a prepayment for liquickty services and amertised over the period of the facility to which
it relates.

Interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to a financlal instrument, or a componsant
part, classified as a llability is reported within finance cost in the income stataments.

Borrowings are classified as current lfabllities unless the Group has an unconditional Hght
to defer seltlement of the liability for at |zast twelve months after the balance sheet date.

Currant and deferred income tax

The tax axpense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in
proft of Ioss, except to the exdent that It relates to- ifetns recognised In other
comprehensive incoms or directly in equity. In this case the tax Is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in aqulty, respectively.

The currant income tax charge is caloulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted o
subrstantively anacted at the end of the reparting petiod in the countries where the Sroup’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable Income.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to shuatians
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to Interpretation. # establishes provigions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected 1o be pald to the tax authorities, This
liabillty is measured using the single best estimate of the most lkely outcome.

Deferrad tax Is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differencas arising
hatween the amounts attrlbuted to assats and llabilities for tax purposes and their BArTying
amaunts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax is not accounted for If it arizes
fram initiel recognition of an asset or lahility in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the tima of the transaction affecls neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expectsd ta apply
when the related deferred tax asset is reallsed or the defarrad tax liability is settled.

Deferrad tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable parafit will

be available against which the deductibie temporary differences, unused tax loszes or
urused tax cradits including unused investment allowance can be utifised.
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{t)

v}

Gurrent and deferred incoms tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on terporary differences arlsing on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income tax liablity where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference s controlled by the group and it iz probable that the
ternparary difference will not reverse in the foresesable future. Generally the Group is
unable ta control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only where there
is an agresment in place that gives the Group the ahility to contral the reversal of the
temporary difference net recognised.

Deferred and Income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
anforceabls right to offset current tax assets against current tax Yiabilities and when ths
defarred Income tax assets and llablities relaie to taxes lsvied by tho same taxation
authority an either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where thare s an intertion
to sattle the balances on a net basis.

Employes benefits
(i Short term amployes benefits

Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick |sava, bonuses and non-monetary
banafits are accrued in the financkal year in which the associated sarvices are
rendered by the emplovess of the Group,

(iiy Dafired contribution plan

The Group’s contributions 1o the Employees’ Provident Fund are charged fo profit
or loss in the financial year to which they relate. Once the contributions have baen
paid, the Group has no further payment obligations, Prepaid contribuions are
recognised as an asset to the extant that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Revenue racogniion

Scheduled passenger flight and chartered flight income are recagnised upen the rendering
of transportation services and where applicable, are stated net of discounts. The value of
seats sold for which sarvicses have not heen rendered is included in current liabilities as
sales in advance. Revenue from aircraft rentals is recorded on a stralght-ling basis over
the term of the isase.

Other revenue which includes fusl surchargs, insurance surcharge, administrative feas,
extess baggage and baggage handling fees, are recognised upon the compistion of
services renderad and where applicable, are stated net of discounts. Freight and other
related revenus are recognised upon the completion of services rendered and where
applicable, are stated net of discounts. Income from the provision of tour operations {hoth
inbound and cutbound) and travel agency services ls recognised upen services boing
rendered and whare applicable, are stated net of discounts.

Rantal income 1s recognised on an acerual hasis.

Brand license fee is recognised on an accrual basls in accordance with the substance of
the agresment.
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{v}

Revanue recognition {sontinued)

Imterest income is recognised using the sffective interest method. When a lean and
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount 1o its recovarable amount,
being the estimated fullre cash flow discounied at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwindling the discount as intarest incorme. Irterest income on
impairad loans and recefvables are recognised using the original effestive interast rats.

The Group participates in a loyalty programme where customers acoumulate points for
purchases made which entitle them te discounts an future purchases. Award points are
recognised as a cost of sale at the time of isaue while revenue from the award points |s
recognised when the points are redeemed. The amount of revenue s based on tha
number of points redesemead and the redempiion value of each point. Award painis expira
36 months aftor the Initlal sale.

Forsign currencles
{i} Functlonal and presentation currency

kems included in the financlal slatements of each of the Group's entities ars
measdred using the currsncy of the primary economic envircnment it which the
entity operates {'the functional currency'). The consolidated financlal statements
are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

{in Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translaled into the functional currency using the
axchangs rates prevailing at the datas of the transactlons or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchangs galns and losses resulting from tha
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss, except when deferred in other comprahensive incorme
as gualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hadges.

Forsign exchange gains and losses arlsing from opetrations ars included in
arriving at the operating profit. Forsign exchange galns and lossas arising from
borrowings (after effects of effactive hedges) and amounts due from associates
and joint veniures are separately disclosed aftar net operating profit.

Changes in the falr value of monetary securitles denominated tn foreign currenay
classified as available for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in
the carrying amount of the security. Transkation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are racognised ih profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised In other comprehansive income.

Translation differences en non-monetary financial assets and liablitles such as
equities held at fair valus through profit or loss are recognisad In profit or loss as
part of the falr valle gain or loss. Transiatlon differences on non-monetary
financlal assets, such as equities classified as avallable for sale, are ncluded in
ather comprehensive income.
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(w)

Fargign currencies {continued)

{iliy (zroup companies

The results and financial posttion of all the Group entities {nons of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy} that have a functional currency different
fram the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as

foltaws:

v assets and (iabilties for each balance sheet presanted are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance shest;

. incoms and expenses for each income statement are transiated at

average exchange rates (unless this average Is not 8 reasonabls
approxdimation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses ars translated at
the dates of the transactions); and

v all resulling exchangs differences are recognised as a separats
component of other comprehenslve income,

On censolidation, exchanga differences ariging from the translation of the net investment
in foreign operationa are laken to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is
disposed of or sold, such exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income staterments as part of the gain or loas on disposal.

On the disposal of a forelgn operation {that is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign oparation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsldiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint conlral over a joint venture that includes
a foreign aperation, or a disposal involving ioss of signlflcant influence over an associate
that includes a foreign operation}, all of the exchangs differences relating to that foreign
operation recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate
component of equity are reclassified to profit or loss. In the case of a parlial disposal that
does not result in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that includes a forelgn
operation, the propertionate share of accumulaied exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interésts and are not recognised in profll or loss. For all other partial
dispogals (that is, reductlons in the Group's ownership Interest in associates or joint
veniures that do not result in the Group losing signlflcant influence or jeint control) the
proportlonate share of the accumulated exchangs difference is reclassified to profit or loss.

Trade pavahbles

Trade payables are ohligations to pay for goods or services that have been acduired in tha
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are ciassifled as current
Iinbilities [f payment is due within ane year or less {or in the normal operating eyels of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabllities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair valua and subseguently measured at
amartlsed cost using the offective Interasat method.
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AlRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY GF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{v}

Contingant liabilities

The Group doss not recognise contingent liakilities bt discloses its exlstence in the
financial statements. A contingent liability is a posslible obligation that arlses from past
gvents whose axlstence will be confirmed by securrence or non-gecurrence of one or mare
uncertain future events beyend the control of the Group or a prasent sbligation that is nof
recaghlsed because It is not probabls that an outflow of resources will be reguired to settls
tha obligation. A contingent ifablity also arises in the extremely rare circumstance where
there is a liability that cannot be recognised because It cannot be moasured reliably.
However, contingent liabilities do not include financial guarantee contracts.

The Group recognises separately the contingent liabilities of the acquirees as part of
allocating the cost of a business combination where thefr fair values san be measured
reliably. Where the falr valugs cannot be measured reliably, the resulting effect will he
reflected In the gaodwlll arising from the acquisitions.

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the Groug measuras the sontingent liabilltles that are
recognised separately &t the date of acquisition at tha higher of the amount that would be
recognised fn accordance with the provisions of MFRS 137 ‘Provisions, Contingent
Liabilties and Contingent Assets’ and the amount Initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amorlsation recognised in accordance with MFRS 118 'Revenue’.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the Internal reporting
provided to tha chief operating decision-markar. The chisf operating dscision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating rescurces and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has beeh identified as the Chief Executive Officer that makes strategic
decisions.
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AIRAS|A BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)
NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgmeants are continually evaluated by the Directors and ars based on historleai
gxparience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed 1o ha
reasohable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptlons conceming the future, The resulling accounting
estimates will, by definition, rarely egual the related actual results. To enhance the information
content of the estimates, certain key variabtes that are anticipated to have a materiai impact ta the
Group's results and flnancial position are lested for sensitivity to changes in the underlying
parameters. The estimates and assumptions that have a signfficant risk of causing a materal
adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and llabilities within the rext vear are explained
balow,

) Estimated useful lives and resldual values of aircraft frames and engines

The Group reviews annually the estimated useful llves and residual values of aircraft
airframes and engines based on factors such as business plans and strategies, expected
lavel of usage, future techrological developments and market prices.

Future rasults of operations could be materially affected by changes in these sstimatas
brought abaut by changes in the factors mentioned above. A reduction in the estimated
useful lives and residual values of aircratt airframes and engines as disclosed in Note 20
would Increase the recorded depresiation charge and decrease the carrying armount of
proparty, plant and equipment,

] Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets ars recognised to the extant that it is probabls that future taxable
profits will be avaffable agafnst which temporary differances can be utilised. Estimating the
future taxable profits Involves significant assumptions, sspecially in respect of fares, load
factor, fuel price, malmenance costs and curkency mevements. These assumplions have
been built based on past performance and ad|usted for non-recurring clrcumatances and a
reasonable growlh rate. However, gven where the actual taxable profits In the future are 5
parcent lower than the anticipated taxable profits, the deferred tax assets can still be fully
Utllzed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

REVENLUE
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
R'D00 RI'D00 RLO00 RBRIDO0
Passenger seat salos 3,004,429 3,285,612 3,004,428 3,255,612
Baggage feos 442,677 302 142 442,877 392,142
Aircraft operating lease income 666,247 534873 565,247 B34,873
Surcharges and fees BRT.GT2 378,685 587,572 374,685
Other revenus 10,497 384,779 10,4397 284,779

5.111,822 4,946,021 6,111,822 4,945,041

Othar revenue includes assigned soat, frefght, cancellation, documentation and othar fees, and the
cn-board sale of meals and merchandisa.

BTAFF COSTS
Group Company
2013 2012 2013 U112
RIOG0 RiA'COG RIO00 R"D00
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances 554,085 521,806 B&0,074 521,710
Difined conlribution retirement plan 86,820 58,488 66,691 58,488

§10,805 580,294 B06, 765 580,207

Included In slaff costs is Executive Directors’ remuneration which is analysed s follows:

__.. Group and Company

2013 2012
RhTO00 R'000
Executive Directors _
- bagic salaries, bonus and allowances 5,925 13,104
- defined contribution plan B3 1,404
Mon-executive Directora
- foas 1,659 1,706
8,415 16,214
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AlIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

STAFF COSTS (CONTINUED)

The remlnaration payable to the Directors of the Company is analvsed as follows:

2013 2012 2013 2012

Exacutive . MNoh-executiva

Range of remuneration

Balow RM150,000 - -
BM1ED,001 ta RM200,000 - -
RM200,001 to RM250,000 - -
RM250,001 to RM3G0,000 . - -
RM30G,001 to BRM350,000 - -
R, 000,007 to RME,000,000
Ri2 000,001 to RM3,000,000
HiA3, 000,001 to A4, 000,000 -
RiAG 000,001 to AMS,D00, 000 - - -
RME, 000,001 to AME,000,000 . 1 - -
RME 000,007 to AM? 000,000 - 1 - -

[ Sr—

f — — — M
T . T T

L — -
1
1

There are no outstanding options over the ardinary shares of the Company gramed under ES0S
to the Directors at the batanca shoset date (2012: Nil).
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{Incorparated In Malayska)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OFERATING EXPENSES

The tollowing items have besn charged/{credited) in arriving &t othar operating expanses:

Impairment of amount due from
a subsidiary
Impairment of avaflable-for-sale
{inancial asset
Fegional expenses incurrad
Impairmnent of trade and other recaivablos
Hental of land arnd bubliding
Aldltors’ remunegration
- audit fees
- nan-audit feas
Rental of equipment
Advartizing costs
Mst foreign exchange losses/{gains)
from operations
- Boalisad
- Unreallsad

QOTHER GAING/LOSSES) ~ NET

Inlerest rate contracts — Held for trading

Forward forelgn exchange contracts — Held for trading

Fusl sontracts — Held for frading

Ineffectiveness on cash flow hedges {Noté 22)

QTHER INCOME

Gain on disposals of propery, plant
and equipment
Others

Group Compary
2013 2012 2013 2012
RRYO00 Rh'000 RM' 000 RMO00
- 5,308
2 6BE - -
45,438 - 45,438
18,864 - 16,382 .
8,310 5,140 G,310 6,140
885 700 843  a75
154 1649 164 169
2,255 2.029 2255 2,829
42 531G 39,408 42,315 35,327
17,137 23,440 17,137 29,440
(35,010) 49,834 {35,010} 49,834
Group and Company
213 2012
FR' 000 RATOO0
48,112 20613
44,634 (5,262
{4,231}
(a7} {85}
D2 689 11,0385
Groyp Comparry
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM'DOG RKO00 RMOOG ELUEEN]
3,038 9,328 3,038 9,328
178,243 114,614 134,777 104,182
181,279 123,542 137 813 113,570

Other income {'others') includes brand licence fees, commission income and advertising Income.
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malzysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 [CONTINUED)

FINANCE INCOME/{COBTS}

Finance ncome:

- deposits with llcensed banks

- short term deposits with fund
management companies

- interest income on amounts dus from
assoclates and joint ventures

- gther interast Insome

Finance oosts:

Interest expanse
- bank borrowings
- amotlisation of premiums
far interest rate caps
Bank facillties and othar charges

FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS

Borrowings:

- realised

- Unrealised

- fair valle movement racycled
from cagh flow hedge reserve

Group Cornpany
2013 2012 2013 2012
RM'DOG RRDOG RM'G00 RM 000
4,779 12,034 4,773 12.034
7E49 3,017 754 3.M7
49,628 51,174 49,528 31,042
8,042 13,186 8,026 13,144
84,208 74,351 B4,192 78,237
{418,794} {IE5,418) {418,794) {369,418}
{8,082 {7,885) (8,032) {7,885)
{1,580 {1.488) (1,521} {1,472
(128,408} {378,B08) {428,347} (378,785)
{5,803) {3,590} {5,608 (3,590)
{86, 767) 255,368 (586,767) 255,325
- 184578 {108,343} 184,578 (106,343)
(397,795} 145,425 {397,795) 145,383
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{Incorporated in Malaysla}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

TAXATION
.. _Group Compary
2013 2012 2013 2012
R0 Ri'000 HMD00 RGO
Current taxation 18,910 18,587 18,810 18,538
Cwver acerual of Income tax in prior years - {342) - {342
: 18810 18,245 8,810 156,184
Deferred taxation (MNote 18} {19,795} 154,704 {19,753} 154,750
{885} 172,348 (BBY) 172,849
Cuarrent taxation
= Current finanalal yvear 18,910 18,587 18,810 18,538
- Jvar accrual of Incorme tax in prior years - (342} - (343}
18,810 15,245 18,910 18,194
Defarrad taxation
- Qrigination and revarsal of temporary
differences : 88,468 241,753 58,468 241 B4
- Tax incentives {88,267 {87,040} {B8,267) (87,049}
{19,709} 154,704 (19,798 154,755
(889) 172,949 (BBY) 172,948

The current taxation chargo is in respect of interest income which Is assessed separalely,

The explanation of the relationship between taxation and profit before taxation is as follows:

Qroup Company

2013 2012 2013 2012

RRI'000 AMOO0 RLOGO RL'000

: (restated)

Profit bafore taxation 361,234 BE2 57 184.091 835,807
Tax calculatad at Malayzalan tax rate

of 25% (2012; 25%:) 80,308 240,838 45,023 206,852

Tax sffects of:

- expensas not deductible for tax purposes 107,711 56,284 107,711 54,713

- ineome net subject to tax {31,419} {35,256) (349 {3,325}

- assoclatas’ results reported net of tax {10,418} {332) - -

- Joint ventures' results repored net of tax (3,400 725 - -

- tax incentlves f137,133) {87,049) (137,133 (B7 .04

- changa in statutory tax rate (16,541} - {16,541) -

- gver accrual of income tax in prior years - (342) - (342)

Taxation {829) 172,845 (885} 172,949

[Smi = =1
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

()

Basic earmings par share

Baslc earnings per shars is calculated by dividing the net profit for the financial year
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financlal year.

Group

2013 2012

{restated)

Met profit for the financial year (RM'000) 352,124 789,608
iWsighted average number of ordinary shares in issus ('000) 2,780,542 2,779,057
Earnings per share (sen) 13.0 254

Diluted sarnings per share

For the dlluted earings per share caiculation, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue is adjustad to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary sharea.

The Group has diluive potential ordinary shares arlsing from the Company's share options
granied to employaes,

In assessing the dilution in earnings per share arlsing from the issue of share options, a
computation is performed to determine the number of shares that could have been
acquired at fair value (determined as the average annual market share price of the
Company's sharas) based on the menetary value of the subscription rights attached to the
outstanding share options. This computation serves to determing the "bonus® element to
the ordinary shares outstanding for the purpose of computing the dilution. No adjustment
is made to net profit for the financlal year in the calculation of the diluted sarnings per
share from tha Issue of the share optlons.

The number of shares calculated as above is comparad with the number of shares that
would have been issusd assuming the exarcise of the share options.

Group

2013 2012

{resiated)

Met profit for the financial year (RMO0M 62124 780,808

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (‘00D) 2,780,642 2,779,057

Adiustment for ESOS "000} 2,020 3124
Waighted averags number of ordinary shares for dilutad

garnings per share 2,782 he2 2782181

Dlluted earnings per share (sen) 13.0 28.4
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Company No.
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysiab

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED)

Group
At 31 December 2013

Aircraft angines, aidrame
and sarvice potentlal
Aircraft spares
Aircraft flxtures and fittings
Buildings
Motor vehicles
Qffice equipment, furniture and fitings
Qffice rencvation
Simulator equipmant
Cperating plant and grotnd equipment
In-flight equiprnent
Training squipment
Work Ih progress

Accumulated

Accumulated ropairment Net ook

Lost  depreciation Jnoss . valus
RAl'0G0 RRGO0 RhIO00 RMCO0
13,844 558 {2,795,015) 11,049 553
278,880 (136,611) (16,983) 125 275
95,845 {71,683 - 24,152
41,204 {B.027) - 33,177
22,595 {17,728 - 4,867

R 692 {49,567} - 20,125
21,657 {13,441} - 8,118

4 967 {3,868) - 1,089
41,0587 (29,547) - 11,480
1,831 {1,233} - 098
4419 {3, 841} - a78
13,786 - 13,796
14,440,380 (2,130,571} {18,983) 11,292 g25
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED}

PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT {CONTINUED)

Group

At 31 Decarmber 2012

Ajrcraft engines, airframea
and service potentiat
Aircraft spares
Alroraft fixtures and fttings
Buildings
Mater vahicles
Oifice squipmant, furniture and fittings
Office renovation
Simulator equipment
Operating plant and ground eguiprment
In-flight equipment
Tralning equipment

Accumulated
Accurnulatad impalrment  Net book
Cost  _depreciation logs  __ value
RrFOC0 RMOO0 RA"000 RI'000
11.830,322  {2,266,573) - B563.749
253714 {111,524} {16,983} 125,207
82,180 {54,533} - 18,647
41,204 {6,523} - 34,581
20,746 {15,535) 4,811
62,258 {(42,553) 18,705
17,5348 {11,130} 68,218
4,067 {3,B28) 1,138
35,589 (26,194) 9,795
1,732 f918) 818
4,418 (3.056) 1,363
12,355,870 {2,552,866) (16.983) 9,786,030

[
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Company No,

284669 | W |

AIRASIA BERHAD
{incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIRMENT (COMTINUED)

Accumulated
Accumulated  impalmment  Met book
Cost depreciation lbss value
HM'O0G RRIO00 M OO0 R'000
Company
At 31 December 2013
Alrcraft engines, airframe
and service npotential 13,844 5658 (2,795,015) - 11,048,553
Aircraft spares 278,869 {136,611} (16,983 125,275
Aircraft fixtures and fittings 85,245 (71,683} 24,152
Buildings 41,204 (B,027) 33177
WMotor vehicles 22,055 {17,728} 4. BaY
Office equipment, furniture and fittings &8,179 {489,427 18,752
Office renovation 17,084 {13,150} 4,834
Simulator squlprient 4,067 (3,268} 1,095
Operating plant and ground equipment 41,037 {29,547} 11,480
In-flight egquipment 1,831 {1,233} 588
Trainlng eguipment 4,419 {3,841} 578
Woark In progress 13,7595 - 13,786
14,435,254 {18,983) 11,288,171

(3,130,140
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Company No.
284689 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD |

{incorporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Accurmulated
Accumulated  impairment  Net book
Cost _depreciation loss value
R 000 RAAO00 RAO00 Ri"000
Compary
At 21 December 2012
Aircraft angines, airframe
and sarvice potential 11,830,322 {2,266 573 - 89.583 749
Aircraft spares 253,714 £111,624) {16,583 125,207
Alrcraft flxtures and fittihgs 83,180 {64,533} - 18,6847
Bulldihgs 41,204 {6,623} - 34,581
Maotor vehiclas 20,746 {15,835 - 4811
Office equipment, furniture and fittinga 32,258 {42,553} - 19,705
Qffice rengvation 17,348 11,130} 6,218
Simulator sguigment 4,987 {3,820} - 1,138
Qperating plant and ground eguiprmant J5,988 {26,194} 9,705
In-flight aquipment 1,732 (916} B1G
Training equipmant 4,418 {3,058) 1,383
12,355,878 (2,552,8686)

(18,983) 92,786,030

Included in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company are assets with the

following net book values:

Net book value of owned aircraft sub-leased to associates

Aircraft pledged as security for horrowings {Mote 26)

Group and Company

2013 2012
ErO00 RMO00
4,254,518 3,484,822
11,049,553 8,561,999

The beneficlal ownership and cperational santrol of alrcraft pladged as gecurity for borrowings

rests with the Company when the alreraft is delivered to the Company.

Where the legal title to the aircraft is hald by financiers during dallvery, the legal title will be
transfarrad 1o the Compary only upon settlsmant of the respective fasilities.

Quring the financial vear, the Company réevised the estimated useful life of its engine service
potential from 7 years to 8 years. The reduction in depreciation chargas for the flnancial year

ariging from the revision amounted to RM44,388,000.
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Company Mo.
2848685 [ W

AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorporatad in Malaysla}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTRMENT iN SUBSIDIARIES

Unquated investmants, al cost
Less: Accumulated impairment losses

At 1 January/31 Decomber

The details of tha subsidiaries ara as follows:

Company

2013
Rh'O00

23,516
(28)

RM'000

23,480

23,480

Country of Group's effective
Mame of antity incoporation adulty Interest Frincipal astlvitips
2013 2012
S Y
Directly held by the
Company .
ArAsia Investment Ltd Malaysia 100 100 Investment holding
(AAIL")
Airhsia Go Holiday Malaysia 100 100 Tour aperating businesa
S5dn Bhd (“AGH"
AlrAsia {(Mauritiug) Limited*  Maurltius 100 100 Providing aircraft leasing
facilitios fo Thai Airdsia
Zo. Lid
Airfsia Compotata Malzysia 100 100 Facilitate business
Services Limited * transactions for AirAsia
Group with non-resident
goods and service
providers
Aras Sejagat Sdn Bhd Malaysia 1080 100 Speclal purpose vahlale

53
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Company Mo,
2894859 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated In Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 {CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN BUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)
The detzils of the subsidiaries are as foilows: (continuad)

Country of  Group's effective

Name &f entity incorporation equity interast Principal activitios
2013 2012
h . %
Directly hald by the
Company
Konlred Sdn Bhd Malaysia 1080 160 Imvestment holding
l:“KDDlrE‘d,I:I
Asia Alr Limited ** Lnited - 100 To provide and promote
. Kingdarm AjrAsia's in-flight food to
the Eurcpean rmarket,
currently dorrmant
AirAsia Global Shared Malaysla 100 - To provide shared sarvicas
Sarvices Sdn Bhd and outsoursing for its
{(“AGEE") affiliates
Held by A
Alrfsia Exp Pte, Lid Sihgapore 100 100 Irvestment holding
{“AAE,I:I Ed
Held by AAIL
AirAsia Capitat Lid - Malaysia 100 100 Cormant

L

Mot audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Malaysia
" Approved for strike off from Registrar of Companies for England and Wales on 18 Juna 2013 _
On 8 May 2013, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, AirAsia Global Sharsd Services
Sdn Bhd {("AGSS"} was incorporated In Malaysia to act as a shared services and cutsourcing hub
for the Company and its affiliates. The initial share capital of AGSS is BM2.00 comprising of 2
ordinary shares of AL1.0G sach,
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Company Na.
284885 | W

A[RAS|A BERHAD

{incorparated in Malaysfa)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT [N JOINT VENTURES

The amounts recognised in the balance sheest are as follows:

: Group  _ Company
2013 2013 2013 2012
Ri'000 RM'00G RLIOOG BRIGO0
Hepresented by;

Ungucted invastments, at cost 111,674 111,674 81,559 81,559

Share of post-acquisition
resgrves 22.680 9,081 - -
134,354 120,755 81,554 81,558

The |oint ventures listed below have share capital consisting solaly of ordinary shares, which are

directly held by the Group:

Principal
place of
business’
country of Group's effactive
Mame of antity incorporation __aquity interesat
2013 2012
% %
Think Big Dlgital Sdn Malaysia a0 g0
Bhd {"BIG"}
Asian Aviation Centre Malaysia B 50
of Excellgnce Sdn Bhd
(“AACOE"
Held by AAE
AAE Travel Fla Ltd Singapore Ly, 50
("AAE Travel™

Principal activities

Financial services

Avialion training

Online travel agency

Al the joint venturas listed above are private companies for which thers Iz ho guoted market price

gvailable for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's Intarest in the joint ventures,

BIG is a strategic partner of the Company and is based in Malaysia. BIG provides expertise in the
operation of an altline loyalty scheme which will enable the Company to earn incremeantal revenye

from the redemption of loyalty painta issusd by BIG.

AACOE iz an aviation training centre with operations in Malaysia and Singapora. AACOE is a
strategic partnar of the Gampany and provides Inltial and recurrent training for both pilats and fllght
attendanis. AACOE also provides fraining to TAA, iAA and PAA and cther airline clients in the

region.
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Company Mo,
2546688 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incarparated in Malaysia)

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUEDS

AAE Travel is an online travel agent based in Singapore. AAE Travel is & strategic partner and
sells bath hotel accommodation and flights across the Asean reglon. AAE Travel provides the

Company with an additional distribution channel and access 1o a wider market,

Summarised finansial information for jaint ventures

Set out below are the summarlsed financial information for the joint ventures which are accounted

far using the equity method:

Summatrised balance sheat

Current

Cash and cash equivalants

Other current assats

Total current asseta

Firanclal llabilities
{excluding trade payahkles}

Oither currant llabilities
{including trade payahles}

Total current llabillties

Non-current

Aasots

Financial lishllitles

Total non-currant. liahilitieg

Met assets

AACOE
2013 2012
RMQO0  RMOOO

7772l 13,768
35714 37564

Total
2013 2012
RMO0D  RM'OOD

153,800 58,982
50,588 53,024

113,435 51,332

204,888 112,505

(23,790 (73.433)

22.327) (3,426

{32,167)  (B0,732)

{49,098} {18,597)

{46,117} (75,859}

{81,265}  {99,329)

284,567 224 D34

270,668 232,359

{125,583}  (4,025)

{125,583)  (4,025)

{125,583}  {4,025)

(125,583)  (4,025)

206,302 195,382

AAE Travel
2043 2012
AMOOC  BRIOOD
TE17S 45214
15,274 15,850
91,453 61,173
(8,377} {7,209}
(26,7711 (15171}
(35,148 {22,470}
6,101 7485
52,408 45,128

268,708 241 510
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284668 | W

AIRAS|A BERHAD

{Incorporated In WMalaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES (CONTINUED)

Summatised statetnent of comprehensive income

AAE Trave| Total
2013 2012 2013 2012

AACCE
2013 2012
Br'O00 RM'OO0
Aevenue 88827

Dapraciation and amortisation
Interas! Income

Interast axpense {2,102y  {2,227)

RWM'OOD  RM'000

(17.638) {13,282)

AM'O0D  RNOOG

76,572 912400 240,209 401,338 317,181
{3084) (1.491) (20717 (14,774}
12,499 2,282 12,489 2982

(2,102) {2,227}

18,027 {23,431} 41,155 {5,607}
{1,750) (418} {13,958) (418}

16,277 (23,848} 27,197 {6,025)

- (171} - (1771}

Profitfiloss) befores taxation 23128 17824
Income tax expenssa (12.208) -
Profit/{loss) after taxation 10,820 17,024
Other comprehansiva loss - -
Tolat comnprehensive income 10,920 17,824

16,277 {(24.020) 27,197 {6,186)

Cividends recaived from joint
vantures

Reconciliations of summarised financial Information

AAE Travel Tota)

AACOE
2013 2012
BWO00  RMO00

Cpening net assets at 1 January 195,382 177.558
Frofit/{loss) for the financial year 10,820 17.824
Crher comprehensive koss - -
Foreign exchange differences

2013 2012 . 2013 2012
Ri'D00

BMOOD  BMOOD  RWPOOO

45,124 B2, 750 241,511 247308
16,277 (23,848) 27,197 (6,025)

{171) " {171}
388 - 498

Chosing net assets at

21 Decembor 206,302 105,582

52,406 46128 26B,70B 241 510

Interest in joint ventures at 50% 103,151 97,691

31,203 23064 134354 120,755

Carrying valus at 31 December 103,157 97,691

31,203 23,064 134,384 120,755

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses made by BIG as the Group's
interest in BIG had been reduced to zefo and the Group has not incurred any obligations or
guaranteed any obligations In respect of this joint venture. The Group's share of Ivss of BIG for the
financial year, whish has not been equity ancountad for, amounted to BM23.3 million. As at 31
December 20113, the unrecognised amounts of the Group’s share of losses of BIG whish have not
been equity accounted for amounted to RM33.1 million {2012: RM2.8 million).
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Compary No,
284669 | W

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Malaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013 (CONTINUED)

IMVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

_ Group Company
2013 2012 2013 2012
R 000 Rk 000 EMGOG RK'G0O0
Unguotad investments, at cost 186,223 171,280 23 28
Group's share of post-
acquisition profitaf{losses) 74,280 {8,435)
260,483 162,845 28 29

The details of the assoclates are as follows:

Principal activities

Principal
place of
husiness/
country of Group's effective
Mamea of antity incotporation __equity interest
2013 22
% Y
AlrAsia Philippines inc Philippines 39.0 48,9
Asian Contact Centres IMalaysia 50.0 50.0
S5dn. Bhdl,
Held by AAIL
FT indonagia AirAsia Indonesla 48,9 4589
{F1AAT
Thal Afrasia Co. Ltd Thailand 45.0 45.0
(“TAA"
AirAsia Go Holiday Thailand 44.0 49.0
Co. Lid
Alrasla ne ("PAA") Philippines 40.0 40.0
AirAsia Japan Co., Lid Japan 49.0
IITJAAJI}
AirAsia (India) Private India 48.0 -

Limited (“AAIPL™)

Providing air transportation
aervices, currently dormant

Froviding end-to-end
solutions for customars
contact management and
contact centre

Commerslal air transport
servicos

Commercial air transpaort
sarvices

Tour operating business,
currently dormant

Commercial air transport
services

Commerclal air transport
services

Commercial air transport
services — currently not
operating

All the assaciates listed above are private companies for which there is no quoted market price

availakle for its shares.

Thera are no contingent liabilitiss relating te the Group's interest in the agsociates.
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